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Andy Bateson

From: Andy Bateson

Sent: 14 February 2024 16:55

To: Bell, Alison

Cc: Submit Appeal; Chris Wentworth; Paul Seckington; David Bainbridge; David 

Hutchison

Subject: RE: APP/C3105/W/23/3326761 - OS Parcel 1570 Adjoining And West Of Chilgrove 

Drive, And Adjoining And North Of, Camp Road, Heyford Park

Dear Alison,

In accordance with Inspector Hockenhull’s request and your confirmation yesterday of today’s deadline, please find 
attached the LPA’s response to the following request concerning what are:

“the implications of the revisions to the PPG for their respective cases and their land supply positions”?

The LPA has already responded, through the submitted advice note of Douglas Edwards KC, that it maintains that 
NPPF new paragraph 226 applies in Cherwell District by virtue of its publication and consultation on its Reg.18 draft 
2040 review Local Plan for Cherwell, with its proposed retained and new policies and development allocation 
proposals and its associated maps and diagrams.

If Inspector Hockenhull accepts that conclusion and thereby agrees with the interpretation and advice offered by Mr 
Douglas Edwards KC and disagrees with the alternative interpretation and advice offered by Ms Sarah Reid KC on 
behalf of the Appellants, then revised PPG Paragraph 002 (Ref ID: 68-002-20240205) entitled What is a 5 year 
housing land supply is relevant to this appeal case in that: “References in this guidance to 5 year housing land supply 
in relation to decision-making will need to be read as relating to 4 year housing land supply…” [my emphasis]

Similarly, PPG Paragraph 004 (Ref ID: 68-004-20240205) entitled How can an authority demonstrate a 5 year 
supply of deliverable housing sites? is also relevant in this instance as it confirms that for decision-taking purposes 
LPAs “can do this in one of two ways…”. The Council’s approach, as explained at the Inquiry (CD.18 & ID.17), has 
been entirely consistent with the guidance specified in paragraph 004.

New PPG Paragraph 055 (Ref ID: 68-055-20240205) entitled What housing land supply does a local planning 
authority need to demonstrate for the purposes of decision making? explains that the “criteria for housing land 
supply requirements for decision-making purposes are set out in paragraphs 76, 77 and 226 of the National Planning 
policy Framework.” It is accepted by all parties that paragraph 76 does not apply in this instance but that paragraph 
77 does apply. For reasons previously explained, the LPA maintains that paragraph 226 must rightly apply in 
Cherwell District, in which case: “…an authority only needs, for the purposes of decision-making, to identify and 
update annually a supply of specific deliverable sites sufficient to provide a minimum of four years’ worth of housing 
(with a buffer, if applicable) against either its housing requirement figure or LHN as appropriate.” [My emphasis] The 
Council maintains, as evidenced in the submissions of its housing witness Mr Jon Goodall (Refs: Core Docs.18 and 
Inquiry Docs.12, 13 & 17), that setting aside the overspill housing needs of Oxford city which are being separately 
addressed through Green Belt release development allocations around Kidlington, Begbroke and Yarnton, that 
Cherwell District’s own strategic housing needs are being satisfactorily addressed through existing permitted and 
allocated developments and that it currently has a published deliverable supply (2023 AMR) of 4,171 dwellings and 
a 5.87-year supply (excluding the previous 5% buffer addition). This Appellant’s own evidence (ID.16) suggests that 
Cherwell would have a deliverable supply amounting to 3,595 dwellings and a 4.82-year supply, as referenced at 
the recent Milcombe appeal decision, if Oxford’s unmet needs are not included.

PPPG Paragraph 055 also highlights that the Glossary of the NPPF defines what can be counted as deliverable and 
stipulates that “both the 5 year housing land supply and the 4 year housing land supply that authorities should 
demonstrate for decision making should consist of deliverable housing sites demonstrated against the authority’s 
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five year housing land supply requirement…” [My emphasis], which is consistent with the advice issued by Mr 
Douglas Edwards KC.

New PPG paragraph 056 (Ref ID: 68-056-20240205) entitled What housing land supply should local planning 
authorities demonstrate against their housing requirement (or LHN as appropriate) with respect to planning 
applications made prior to 19 December 2023? adds that: “Where the criteria under paragraph 226 are met, an 
authority will need to demonstrate a 4 year housing land supply with a 20% buffer, if appropriate, against their five 
year housing land supply requirement.” That is similarly consistent with the advice of Douglas Edwards KC.

PPG Paragraph 006 (Ref ID: 68-006-20190722) entitled Which strategic housing policies are used to calculate the 5 
year housing land supply where there is more than one strategic housing requirement policy for the area? Is 
unchanged and, contrary to what the Appellant has sought to argue, has consistently provided guidance on the 
accommodation of multiple strategic housing policies and multiple strategic housing requirements, as is the case in 
Cherwell District. The new PPG is not seeking to change planning policy, as the Appellant’s housing witness has 
recently been arguing at other recent appeals and may seek to argue here. The wording in paragraph 006 guidance 
was first published in 2019. 

With regard to PPG Paragraph 022 (Ref ID: 68-022-20240205), which is entitled When should the 20% buffer be 
added to the 5 year housing land supply requirement? it is common ground between the parties that a 20% buffer 
is inappropriate in Cherwell District because delivery of housing in the District has consistently satisfied the housing 
requirement figure over numerous years and, in any case, Paragraph 022 states that “authorities who are not 
required to demonstrate a 5-year housing land supply should disregard this requirement.”

Critically in respect to the Appellant’s contention that the housing requirement needs of Cherwell District should be 
combined with the unmet overspill housing needs of Oxford city into Cherwell District (4,400 dwellings to 2031) 
Paragraph 028 (Ref ID: 68-028-20240205) entitled How will areas with joint plans be monitored for the purposes 
of a 5 year housing land supply? states: “Areas which have a joint plan have the option to monitor their 5 year 
housing land supply and have the Housing Delivery Test applied over the whole of the joint planning area or on a 
single authority basis. The approach to using individual or combined housing requirement figures will be 
established through the plan-making process and will need to be set out in the strategic policies.” [My emphasis] 
This guidance supports the LPAs case; not the Appellant’s case. It is perfectly reasonable for the LPA to maintain 
separate strategic housing land supply monitoring for Cherwell District and for the overspill from Oxford city. 
Keeping those strategies and monitoring separate was endorsed through the Local Plan Partial Review Examination 
and has subsequently been further endorsed at three recent S.78 appeal decisions in Cherwell where other 
Appellants have sought to argue, like this Appellant, that the requirements of Oxford city should be combined with 
those of Cherwell District but Inspectors have disagreed.

In summary and conclusion, the revised PPG offers some clarification to the recent NPPF publication and, taken 
together, the guidance issued supports the Council’s case in respect to the District’s housing land supply. 

I hope that Inspector Hockenhull find this response helpful. 

Kind regards,

Andy

Andy Bateson, BSc (Hons), MRTPI
Development Management Team Leader
Development Management Division
Communities Directorate
Cherwell District Council
Bodicote House
Bodicote
Banbury
OX15 4AA

Tel:  01295 221 637
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Email: andy.bateson@cherwell-dc.gov.uk
Web: www.cherwell.gov.uk
Facebook: www.facebook.com/cherwelldistrictcouncil
Twitter: @cherwellcouncil

Planning and Development services can be contacted as follows:
Development Management - planning@cherwell-dc.gov.uk;
Planning Policy - planning.policy@cherwell-dc.gov.uk;
Building Control - building.control@cherwell-dc.gov.uk;
Conservation - design.conservation@cherwell-dc.gov.uk.
For the latest information on Planning and Development please visit www.cherwell.gov.uk

From: Bell, Alison <ALISON.BELL@planninginspectorate.gov.uk> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 13, 2024 11:58 AM
To: David Bainbridge <david.bainbridge@savills.com>; Harry Ramsey <harry.ramsey@savills.com>; Katriona 
Ormiston-Rees <katriona.ormistonrees@savills.com>; david.hutchison@pegasusgroup.co.uk; Neil Cottrell 
<N.Cottrell@dorchestergrp.com>; Gavin Angell <G.Angell@dorchestergrp.com>; Chris Wentworth 
<Chris.Wentworth@cherwell-dc.gov.uk>; Submit Appeal <Submit.Appeal@Cherwell-DC.gov.uk>; Andy Bateson 
<Andy.Bateson@cherwell-dc.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: APP/C3105/W/23/3326761 - OS Parcel 1570 Adjoining And West Of Chilgrove Drive, And Adjoining And 
North Of, Camp Road, Heyford Park

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Council. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognise the 
sender and know the content is safe.

Close of play tomorrow please.

Kind regards

Alison
Mrs Alison Bell
Major Casework Team
The Planning Inspectorate
3rd Floor, Temple Quay House
2 The Square
Temple Quay
Bristol
BS1 6PN
Direct Line: 0303 444 5279
Email: alison.bell@planninginspectorate.gov.uk

Please note my work pattern is Monday to Thursday

From: David Bainbridge <david.bainbridge@savills.com> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 13, 2024 11:35 AM
To: Bell, Alison <ALISON.BELL@planninginspectorate.gov.uk>; Harry Ramsey <harry.ramsey@savills.com>; Katriona 
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
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Alison, may I check whether the 5 working days from the email last Wednesday means a deadline of close of play 
today or close of play tomorrow? Thanks, David

David Bainbridge MA (Hons) MRTPI 
Director
Planning 

Savills, Wytham Court, 11 West Way, Oxford, OX2 0QL
Tel : +441865269053

Mobile : +447866885372

Email : david.bainbridge@savills.com

Website : www.savills.co.uk

 

From: Bell, Alison <ALISON.BELL@planninginspectorate.gov.uk> 
Sent: 07 February 2024 15:59
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

Good afternoon,

Thank you for your recent emails including the attached from the Rule 6 Party.

Please see the Inspector’s comments below; 

I can confirm that I am now seeking comments from the main parties on the implications of the revisions to the PPG 
for their respective cases and their land supply positions.

I will then consider the comments made. 

In the circumstances, I see no need for the appellant to have ‘the last word’ and comment further on the parties 
submissions. The Inquiry has been formally closed and I am only seeking comments as there has been a change in 
Guidance.

I do not wish to prolong the matter and I am sure all parties would wish to see a decision made as soon as possible.

I give the parties 5 working days to respond.

Kind regards

Alison
Mrs Alison Bell
Major Casework Team
The Planning Inspectorate
3rd Floor, Temple Quay House



5

2 The Square
Temple Quay
Bristol
BS1 6PN
Direct Line: 0303 444 5279
Email: alison.bell@planninginspectorate.gov.uk

Please note my work pattern is Monday to Thursday

From: Andy Bateson <Andy.Bateson@cherwell-dc.gov.uk> 
Sent: Tuesday, February 6, 2024 4:20 PM
To: Bell, Alison <ALISON.BELL@planninginspectorate.gov.uk>
Cc: David Bainbridge <david.bainbridge@savills.com>; david.hutchison@pegasusgroup.co.uk; Chris Wentworth 
<Chris.Wentworth@cherwell-dc.gov.uk>; Katriona Ormiston-Rees <katriona.ormistonrees@savills.com>; Harry 
Ramsey <harry.ramsey@savills.com>; Submit Appeal <Submit.Appeal@Cherwell-DC.gov.uk>
Subject: RE: APP/C3105/W/23/3326761 - OS Parcel 1570 Adjoining And West Of Chilgrove Drive, And Adjoining And 
North Of, Camp Road, Heyford Park

Dear Alison et al,

From the LPAs perspective, it would only further delay the decision making process on this appeal to allow the 
Appellant to comment not only on the latest PPG but also be afforded an opportunity to comment further on 
whatever the LPA and Rule 6 Party may offer by way of comment on the new PPG guidance.

Our understanding is that Inspector Hockenhull only now seeks whatever comments we may all have on the latest 
PPG guidance and its relevance to this appeal and it is then up to the Inspector to make what she may of those 
comments. The comments themselves ought not to be evidence as such but should surely focus on whatever 
relevance the latest PPG guidance may have for our respective land supply positions in respect to this development 
proposal. Therefore, I would not have expected in this instance any need for any final ‘right of reply’.

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
Sent: Tuesday, February 6, 2024 3:50 PM
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To: alison.bell@planninginspectorate.gov.uk; Andy Bateson <Andy.Bateson@cherwell-dc.gov.uk>; Chris Wentworth 
<Chris.Wentworth@cherwell-dc.gov.uk>; david.hutchison@pegasusgroup.co.uk; Katriona Ormiston-Rees 
<katriona.ormistonrees@savills.com>; Harry Ramsey <harry.ramsey@savills.com>
Subject: APP/C3105/W/23/3326761 - OS Parcel 1570 Adjoining And West Of Chilgrove Drive, And Adjoining And 
North Of, Camp Road, Heyford Park

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the Council. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognise the 
sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Alison, please can we seek clarity from the Planning Inspector following yesterday’s update to the Planning 
Practice Guidance on housing supply and delivery.

We have mentioned before the principle of the Appellant’s final right of reply. In this context we would suggest it is 
appropriate for the Council and Rule 6 Party to be asked to provide any final submissions following which the 
Appellant can provide submissions in respect of the PPG update and response to the Douglas Edwards KC advice, 
after which the inquiry would be closed and nothing further accepted from any party.

Thanks, David

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

 

NOTICE: This email is intended for the named recipient only. It may contain privileged and confidential information. 
If you are not the intended recipient, notify the sender immediately and destroy this email. You must not copy, 
distribute or take action in reliance upon it. Whilst all efforts are made to safeguard emails, the Savills Group cannot 
guarantee that attachments are virus free or compatible with your systems and does not accept liability in respect of 
viruses or computer problems experienced. The Savills Group reserves the right to monitor all email 
communications through its internal and external networks. 

For information on how Savills processes your personal data please see our privacy policy

Savills plc. Registered in England No 2122174. Registered office: 33 Margaret Street, London, W1G 0JD. 

Savills plc is a holding company, subsidiaries of which are authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct 
Authority (FCA)

Savills (UK) Limited. A subsidiary of Savills plc. Registered in England No 2605138. Regulated by RICS. Registered 
office: 33 Margaret Street, London, W1G 0JD.
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Savills Advisory Services Limited. A subsidiary of Savills plc. Registered in England No 06215875. Regulated by RICS. 
Registered office: 33 Margaret Street, London, W1G 0JD.

Savills Commercial Limited. A subsidiary of Savills plc. Registered in England No 2605125. Registered office: 33 
Margaret Street, London, W1G 0JD.

Savills Channel Islands Limited. A subsidiary of Savills plc. Registered in Guernsey No. 29285. Registered office: Royal 
Terrace, Glategny Esplanade, St Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 2HN. Registered with the Guernsey Financial Services 
Commission. No. 86723.

Martel Maides Limited (trading as Savills). A subsidiary of Savills plc. Registered in Guernsey No. 18682. Registered 
office: Royal Terrace, Glategny Esplanade, St Peter Port, Guernsey, GY1 2HN . Registered with the Guernsey 
Financial Services Commission. No. 57114.

We are registered with the Scottish Letting Agent Register, our registration number is LARN1902057.

Please note any advice contained or attached in this email is informal and given purely as guidance unless otherwise 
explicitly stated. Our views on price are not intended as a formal valuation and should not be relied upon as such. 
They are given in the course of our estate agency role. No liability is given to any third party and the figures 
suggested are in accordance with Professional Standards PS1 and PS2 of the RICS Valuation –Global Standards 
(incorporating the IVSC International Valuation Standards) effective from 31 January 2022 together, the ''Red Book'. 
Any advice attached is not a formal ("Red Book") valuation, and neither Savills nor the author can accept any 
responsibility to any third party who may seek to rely upon it, as a whole or any part as such. If formal advice is 
required this will be explicitly stated along with our understanding of limitations and purpose.

BEWARE OF CYBER-CRIME: Our banking details will not change during the course of a transaction. Should you 
receive a notification which advises a change in our bank account details, it may be fraudulent and you should notify 
Savills who will advise you accordingly. 

Attention: This email (including any attachments) may be confidential and may contain legally privileged 
information. You should not disclose its contents to any other person. If you are not the intended recipient, please 
notify the sender immediately. 

Whilst the Council has taken every reasonable precaution to minimise the risk of computer software viruses, it 
cannot accept liability for any damage you may sustain due to such viruses. It would be best if you conducted your 
own virus checks before opening the email (and any attachments). 

Unless expressly stated otherwise, the content of this email represents only the sender's views. It does not impose 
any legal obligation upon the Council or commit the Council to any course of action. 

Please take a moment to review the Planning Inspectorate's Privacy Notice which can be 
accessed by clicking this link.

Please note that the contents of this email and any attachments are privileged and/or confidential and intended 
solely for the use of the intended recipient. If you are not the intended recipient of this email and its attachments, 
you must take no action based upon them, nor must you copy or show them to anyone. Please contact the sender if 
you believe you have received this email in error and then delete this email from your system.

Recipients should note that e-mail traffic on Planning Inspectorate systems is subject to monitoring, recording and 
auditing to secure the effective operation of the system and for other lawful purposes. The Planning Inspectorate has 
taken steps to keep this e-mail and any attachments free from viruses. It accepts no liability for any loss or damage 
caused as a result of any virus being passed on. It is the responsibility of the recipient to perform all necessary checks.
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The statements expressed in this e-mail are personal and do not necessarily reflect the opinions or policies of the 
Inspectorate.

DPC:76616c646f72

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


